MONMOUTHSHIRE BUILDING SOCIETY MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD AT MONMOUTHSHIRE HOUSE, JOHN FROST SQUARE, NEWPORT NP20 1PX ON WEDNESDAY 26 AUGUST 2020 AT 11AM

Present: D Lewis (Chair), WJ Carroll (CEO), T Barratt*, L McKenzie*, AD Morgan*, R

Turner*, N Hingorani-Crain*, D Gunter (Chief Operating Officer), I Jones (Finance Director)*, D Mollison (Chief Risk Officer) (DM), A Currie (Company Secretary) (AC), K Harris (Assistant Company Secretary)*, L Harris (Capital &

Strategic Planning Manager)

In attendance: L Harvey (Marketing Manager), P Doyle (Howsons Electoral Services)*, L Whittaker Howson Electoral Services)*

* Attending by video conference

Present

Debra Lewis in the Chair and other members as recorded in the attendance book and above.

It was noted that due to the ongoing COVID-19 situation and to safeguard the health and well-being of members the AGM would be held with the minimum number of attendees required to constitute a meeting and form a quorum (whether in person or by electronic means) under the Corporate Insolvency and Governance Act 2020.

Introduction

The Chair welcomed everyone to the Society's 151st Annual General Meeting.

The Chair advised that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting had been distributed to members with the Customer Newsletter and Summary Financial Statement. The Auditor's Report was included within the Summary Financial Statement. The Chair also pointed out that the Annual Report and Accounts, Directors Report and Annual Business Statement were available on the website.

Presentations

The Directors' Report, Annual Accounts and Annual Business Statement for the year ended 30th April 2020 were formally presented to the meeting.

The Directors' Report, having been previously circulated, was taken as read but the Chair summarised the more important aspects of the year. The key points raised in the course of her address included:

The past financial year was mostly one of celebration as the Society continued to evolve, adapt and grow beyond its 150th year in line with its vision of becoming the modern mutual. However, the year ended with great uncertainty, as the coronavirus pandemic struck globally. As the country dealt with the impact of the pandemic and UK lockdown, there had been a material shift in activity at the Society, with emphasis and focus on short-term business resilience and continuity of service to members, whilst protecting the health and wellbeing of members and colleagues. This included significant action taken to ensure that the Society's loyal borrowing members were not at risk of losing their home because of COVID-19. Businesses and households would need to consider what will be a dramatically different outlook than before the pandemic struck.

- As would be expected, the Society's annual results had been adversely affected by the pandemic. However, in the first eleven months of the year mortgage lending performance had been strong, exceeding market levels of growth as the Society focused on providing excellent value to borrowing and savings members.
- Underlying profitability for the year showed a reduction on the prior year. This was the result
 of margin squeeze in a competitive environment combined with increased charges resulting
 from the cost of the pandemic, partially offset by lower administrative costs and the absence
 of impairment charges in relation to the head office building as experienced in the prior year.
- The current strategy addresses the key strategic risks to the Society of long-term sustainability and risk of obsolescence. The healthy balance sheet and strong capital position provides the Society with the opportunity to grow and prosper into the future. However, the pace of asset growth will slow significantly when compared to previous forecasts until a return to a more normal operating environment is evident.
- The Society continues to develop a One Team Culture, with a focus on diversity and inclusion and improving employee engagement. This enables successful delivery of strategy. The Society's strategy highlights the Board's commitment to achieve long-term sustainable growth and its vision of becoming a modern mutual, underpinned by several key, member-led, strategic priorities and initiatives.
- Investment in infrastructure continues, which is seen as critical to the long-term success
 and relevance of the Society. Investment to date allowed the Society to respond swiftly and
 effectively to the lockdown from the COVID-19 outbreak and the Society remained resilient
 and able to continue to serve the needs of members during this time.
- The response to the coronavirus pandemic by all, at a time of great uncertainty and vulnerability in all colleagues' personal and professional lives, highlights the culture and core values of the organisation. The Chair recorded her thanks to the Board, the management team and all colleagues at the Society for their continued commitment, enthusiasm and dedication in ensuring Monmouthshire Building Society remains successful. She thanked members for their support, understanding and patience at this difficult time.

Having concluded her address, the Chair called on the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Will Carroll, to discuss the Society's future strategy.

The key points raised by the CEO in the course of his address included:

• Whilst the coronavirus pandemic is undoubtedly the key focus of reporting at the present time, Monmouthshire Building Society continued to evolve in line with its strategy. The clearly outlined plans of mortgage growth through a period of investment in people, processes and infrastructure continued to prove robust. This was despite the political uncertainty in existence prior to the December 2019 election, intense competition for lending and low funding costs that remain prevalent in the low interest rate environment in which the Society operates. However, with the foundations now in place, the Society has continued to grow into its cost base, fulfilling its purpose of helping members, communities and colleagues to thrive.

- The full impact of the pandemic on the housing market and consequently house prices remains unknown. Within the UK, the lockdown caused the property market to grind to a halt. People were unable to move to a new house, viewings and physical valuations could not be performed and estate agents had to suspend operations. While such restrictions have now been eased and the market has reopened, some social distancing measures remain in place.
- The pace of recovery is depended on the state of the wider economy. If households whose
 incomes remain stable and secure can take advantage of historically low interest rates, this
 should support a return to stronger levels of price growth in the medium term. Conversely,
 Brexit uncertainty may act as a drag on consumer and business confidence and dampen
 any recovery in house prices and transaction levels.
- Through its member led strategy, the Society is building solutions to address members'
 needs. Delivering member led propositions is a key factor that supports the Society's growth
 ambitions. Member feedback highlights the Society's success in delivering value and
 service to members with 96% members surveyed saying that they would use the Society
 again and 94% stating that they would recommend the Society to family and friends.
- The Society still plans to launch a current account that is opened and serviced via a digital platform. This will enable the Society not only to increase its product range but also enter the digital arena. The service will include a debit card, digital wallets to assist with budgeting and functionality to set up direct debits, standing orders, faster payments and usage abroad. We believe this exciting proposition will attract new membership from a younger demographic and increase existing member loyalty and brand awareness.
- At present, it is very difficult to look forward at the path of the UK economy. The key discussion surrounds the length of the current lockdown and the subsequent length of recovery and whether that takes the form of a 'V', 'U', or 'L' shaped pattern. The Board is managing the day to day challenges presented by the coronavirus pandemic whilst continuing to focus on the longer term and move forward on delivery of key strategic initiatives to ensure future sustainability of the Society. Future levels of growth will be curtailed in the short term, however, dependent upon the length of the lockdown, the Board will review and adjust its strategy model and continued Investment in infrastructure, as previously outlined, means there is light at the end of the tunnel. Our committed colleagues will continue to strive to deliver the best service for current members and generations to come. The Society is well placed to grow and emerge from the crisis, ensuring future sustainability and success.

Members' Questions

The Chair advised the meeting that the following questions had been submitted in advance: The Board replied to the questions submitted in advance.

1. How does the Society intend to improve the underlying profitability of the Society, which has been in decline since 2016?

The Society will leverage the investment it has made in people, processes and infrastructure over the past few years to deliver its five year business plan for profitable growth. Through the delivery of new products, services and increased distribution for its members, the Society will maximise opportunities whilst effectively controlling the cost base to ensure sustainability and future profits for its members.

2. Despite the COVID-19 disruption and the wider economic implications is it still the board's intention to offer a full current account and if so when is this likely to be offered to members and the wider general public?

Over the past months, access to banking services have been severely disrupted by the COVID-19 pandemic, with heavy reliance on digital solutions where usual physical operations have been unavailable. The Board believe that by remaining committed to the delivery of a current account that is operated online and via a mobile App we can deliver new solutions to members that complement our existing suite of products and distribution channels.

The Board also acknowledges the impact COVID-19 has had on resource availability both within the Society and our selected partners and has taken the decision to review our planned launch for the current account. The Society now feel that it is more appropriate to delay the launch until early 2021 to give time for the impact of COVID-19 to be fully understood, including any further disruption that may result if the predicted second wave of the virus is realised.

- 3. (a) Please can the Board provide more colour on the Society's work to improve its operational efficiency and remove unnecessary cost to deliver better value for members? Does the Society have an active cost-optimisation plan; and benchmark itself against its peer group? Particularly, given the intent the Board has signalled to invest/expand in its branch network as a differentiator, how does the Society plan to remain cost-competitive particularly given the rise of digital only competitors?
 - (b) Please can the Board provide detail on the Society's support for reducing systemic racial inequality; and whether any working groups have been setup internally to promote greater diversity and inclusion within both the Society's colleague base, but also increasing the diversity of our membership base as a whole?
 - (c) Finally, please can you provide some greater colour on the economic projections the Society has chosen to use when modelling loan-loss reserves, and how this data is obtained?
 - (a) As part of the Societies five year strategic plan, it has sub strategies that cover operational efficiency and digital servicing that are currently delivering initiatives such as online mortgage rate switch and online savings bond maturities. The Society has also invested in the development of a Continuous Improvement (CI) function within the business and this is resourced to deliver across a broad range of initiatives including business process re-engineering accompanied by the enhancement of the CI culture within the business. The Society has also recently embarked on a Robotic Process Automation (RPA) programme that looks to deliver wide ranging operational efficiencies to the Society. It continues to benchmark all areas of performance against both peer Societies and the wider industry.
 - (b) The Society is committed to embracing diversity and promoting equality of opportunity in all its forms including racial equality. Our Diversity and Inclusion Policy seeks to add value to the Society by contributing to colleague well-being and engagement. Some of our current diversity and inclusion work includes:
 - Our colleague forum which is made up of representatives from across the Society.
 The forum has a standing agenda item to discuss diversity related ideas at every
 meeting; these relate to both colleague and member related initiatives. Colleagues are
 actively encouraged to suggest and feedback on any diversity related initiatives.
 - We publish relevant articles on our Intranet, recently we posted about the Black Lives Matter movement and included suggested reading materials, videos and podcasts.

- As part of our Pride month celebrations we changed our logo to a rainbow version
 which included black and brown stripes to represent people of colour. Additionally, we
 published an internal article celebrating influential LGBTQ+ people focusing on
 several people of colour.
- We are collecting diversity data from our colleagues (although this is optional to complete) including ethnic group or background so we can ensure we are working towards a colleague profile representative of our communities.
- A number of in-house training courses are in development; one of these will be a
 webinar on unconscious bias and a selection. Unconscious bias will also feature in
 other appropriate courses.
- (c) As you will appreciate, we are required to make significant judgements and estimates in order to determine incurred losses on loans and advances to customers and ultimately the provision we hold against these.

In making these judgements and estimates, we have considered:

- Our own specific historical data;
- Our experience and knowledge of the current mortgage book and mortgage market at the time of our calculations; and
- Regulator and internal estimates of house price and unemployment rate movements that could arise during a general or specific period of economic stress and the resultant impact on our book.

This is not out of line with our usual calculations, however the subjectivity of these estimates has increased significantly as a result of the uncertainties arising from COVID-19.

As you may be aware, our provisions are calculated on both an individual and collective basis.

Individual impairments (single property or single borrower) are made by reference to loans that are already in arrears or in possession or where there is evidence that the loan may not be repaid in full.

In general, we tried to maintain our existing models, reviewing and amending where required, and then overlaid on top of those an additional charge to reflect the uncertainty arising from the current situation. Specifically, we looked at, for example, the level of payment holidays agreed, included a house price stress and increased our probability of defaults to account for a deteriorating economy (e.g. we'd agreed c.£125m of payment holidays as at our financial year end, which is around 12% of our outstanding book and is generally in line with industry averages). In light of these stresses applied to our models, we generated an additional specific provision of c.£380k.

Our collective impairment is derived from a model that combines our historical impairment experience with economic indicators at the time of the calculation, overlaid with our experience and knowledge.

A collective provision was made to reflect the increased credit risk associated with the whole of the loan book. Our mortgage book in general is of low loan to value and thus the stresses to house process, increased forced sale discounts and a reduction in the emergence period of payment difficulties did not have a significant effect on our overall provisions, generating an increase of c.£75k.

Overall, as a result of the above increases in addition to "normal" yearly model fluctuations, our provision balance increased c.£500k from 2019 financial year end.

Given the unprecedented nature of the current crisis, we do very much accept though that this is a point in time estimate and is subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty and it's accuracy depends very much on how the economy performs from here on out and the shape of its recovery – we've already seen house prices rebound quite strongly but obviously a number of sectors within the economy have been impacted badly with overall GDP tumbling over the period and this impact on employment rates is yet to be seen.

4. We've heard about a current account launch about a year ago – what's happening?

Over the past months, access to banking services have been severely disrupted by the COVID-19 pandemic, with heavy reliance on digital solutions where usual physical operations have been unavailable. The Board believe that by remaining committed to the delivery of a current account that is operated online and via a mobile App we can deliver new solutions to members that complement our existing suite of products and distribution channels.

The Board also acknowledges the impact COVID-19 has had on resource availability both within the Society and our selected partners and has taken the decision to review our planned launch for the current account. The Society now feel that it is more appropriate to delay the launch until early 2021 to give time for the impact of COVID-19 to be fully understood, including any further disruption that may result if the predicted second wave of the virus is realised.

5. I am a new member and would not know enough to vote this year, but I like your donation to charity. Perhaps next year you could send out names and interests of the proposed board members. A little history would help me decide. I do find your staff pleasant and helpful.

Welcome to the Society and thank you for your feedback. We would hope the questioner will be able to join us in person at AGMs in the future. Biographical details for the directors are included within the Notice of Meeting which forms part of the InTouch magazine sent to members. These are on pages 14 to 20. We also put biographies for the directors on our website.

6. Why are you not taking cash?

We are still taking cash within our branches and agencies, nothing has changed in this regard, however we do have limits on how much cash we can receive to ensure we meet our legal and regulatory obligations and insurance limits regarding how much cash we can have on the premises.

Through the peak of the pandemic, to support the 'stay at home' messaging from government, transactions allowed at branch were limited, this was only a temporary measure that has now been removed.

7. Has consideration been given to us merging with another building society to reduce any downsides from our current small size?

Our current strategy addresses the key strategic risks to the Society of long-term sustainability and risk of obsolescence. Our healthy balance sheet and strong capital position provides the Society with the opportunity to grow and prosper into the future. The Society is well placed to grow and emerge from the crisis, ensuring future sustainability and success. A merger with another building society is not currently under consideration.

8. Could you clarify the difference between a non-executive director and staff?

Non-executive directors are not employees of the organisation in the same way staff and executive directors are. Non-executive director's roles are to provide independent oversight and constructive challenge to the executive directors.

Although there is no legal distinction between executive and non-executive directors, non-executive directors are expected to focus on board matters and not stray into the day to day running of the business.

9. How is the Society looking forward past COVID and supporting, informing and engaging your members?

The foundations for providing a distinctive customer proposition are:

- our strong regional brand;
- our member-focused culture; and
- our financial security.

Our ambition to serve our members and local community runs through our culture and decision making and is key to ensuring we are building a safe and sustainable business that our members trust. Due to COVID-19, the annual update of our strategic plan has been deferred until later this year, given that the economic impact of COVID-19 will be more predictable to enable better informed strategic decisions. However, members can rest assured that our member led strategy will continue to ensure that the member remains at the heart of the Society's decision making. Our commitment to personal service will mean that we continue to provide support to our members in whichever way we can. This will help to ensure that positive outcomes are achieved for both Society and member, supporting the Society's future growth.

We will continue to inform and engage our membership through a wide range of different channels and forms including MBS Social Media, our branch and agency network, sponsorship, Member research panels, surveys, Annual Report and AGM, Newsletters and many other member communications and community activities.

10. What factors make up the "other fair value losses" mentioned in the 2020 accounts?

The main factor that has driven the society to make a loss on its fair value hedges is the continued reduction in LIBOR throughout the year which has had a negative impact on the underlying value of the swaps and the interest received on the swap.

11. Would it be possible to open a branch in North Wales?

The Society is proud to have a branch network and remains committed to the High Street. As a mutual Society, the investment required to increase the branch footprint is carefully considered along with a number of other factors. At this time, North Wales is not in consideration for a new branch due to the practicalities of operating a regional Society branch so far from the core operational units.

12. I missed putting cash in a Christmas savings account because of lockdown as Risca branch was closed. Do I lose out on a Christmas bonus?

Understanding the challenges faced in accessing branches during the lockdown period, the Society did place an acceptance for bonus payments to be re-added for a period that extended beyond the branch closure; this expired at the end of July. Please speak to a member of staff at the branch to discuss your individual circumstances to understand if we are able to help.

The Chair asked whether members present had any further questions. No further questions were received. The Chair asked that members be invited to submit questions to the Board following the AGM should they wish to do so.

Voting

Due to the ongoing situation with COVID-19 members were unable to attend the meeting in person and it had been recommended that they vote online, by post or in branch.

The Scrutineers confirmed that the votes had been counted and verified.

The Secretary then announced the following results:

Resolution to Receive the Auditors' Report, Directors' Report, Annual Accounts and Annual Business Statement

The Secretary reported that the resolution to receive the Auditor's Report, Directors' Report, Annual Accounts and the Annual Business Statement for the year ended 30 April 2020 was carried 98.90 percent in favour.

The Chair declared the Auditor's Report, the Directors' Report, the Annual Accounts and Annual Business Statement for the year ended 30th April 2020 duly adopted.

The result of the poll subsequently declared following the meeting was:

Votes in favour: 3596Votes against: 40Votes withheld: 34

Resolution to appoint BDOG LLP as Auditors

The Secretary reported that the resolution to appoint BDOG LLP as Auditors until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting was carried 97.63 percent in favour.

The Chair declared that BDOG LLP had been appointed as Auditors until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

The result of the poll subsequently declared following the meeting was:

Votes in favour: 3539Votes against: 86Votes withheld: 45

Resolution to Approve the Directors' Remuneration Report

The Secretary reported that the resolution to approve the Directors' Report on Remuneration for the year ended 30th April 2020 was carried 93.38 percent in favour.

The Chair declared the Directors' Report on Remuneration for the year ended 30th April 2020 approved.

The result of the poll subsequently declared following the meeting was:

Votes in favour: 3356Votes against: 238Votes withheld: 76

Resolutions for the Re-Election of Directors

The Secretary reported that the resolutions for each of those Directors offering themselves for reelection, namely Trevor Barratt, Anthony Morgan and William Carroll had been carried as follows:

Re-Election:

•	Trevor Barratt	96.07%
•	Anthony Morgan	95.84%
•	William Carroll	96.73%

The Chair declared the said Directors duly re-elected.

The result of the poll subsequently declared following the meeting was:

	Votes For	Votes Against	Votes Withheld
Trevor Barratt	3468	142	60
Anthony Morgan	3459	150	61
William Carroll	3496	118	56

Any Other Business Permitted by the Rules of the Society

None.

Close of Meeting

There being no further questions, the Chair declared the 151st Annual General Meeting of the Society closed and thanked those in attendance and those who had submitted questions to the Board.

K M Harris 26 August 2020